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11 Andover Strset

This house wag built for Deacon Jacob Sanderson, cabinet-
maker, by 1809.

For several generations, this lot was part of a substantial
tract owned by the Beckford family of Salem; with the
laying-out of Federal Street in the 1760s the Beckfords
began to sell off portions of their land.

On 6 Mar 1781 Ebenezer Beckford, Salem merchant, for 16% 1i
granted to Jacob & Elijah Sanderson, cabinet-making brothers
who had moved to Sglem from Middlesex County, a piece of
land fronting 82' on "the new street" (Federal St); at this
time Lynn St and Andover St had not yet been laid out (139:39).
The brothers Sanderson proceeded to have built for them a
double house (still standing at 120=-122 Federal Street) oa
this land, with a well out back. On 7 Aug 1762 the brethren
completed their lot by buying from Benjamin Goodhue Jr,
Salem merchant, a gore of land running 74' 10" by land

that Mr Goodhue promised "shall be a public way of 20!

wide thro! my field" (Lynn St); this gore faced 15' 10"

on the land of Deacon John Beckford (soon to become

Andover 3t), (157:72). :

On 28 Aug 1783 Elijah and Jacob Sanderson agreed to parti-
tion their joint holding, which was comprised of the
dwelling house on Federal Street and the land it stood

on, bounded east on John Leech, south on Federal Street,
("the new street'), west on Lynn St ("a new lane") and
north on Andover St ("another new lane'): Elijah received
the western half of the house and land, and Jacob received
the eastern half of the house and land, along with the
northern-most piece of the estate (141:78).

Deacon Jacon Sanderson and family resided in -this eastern
half of the Sanderson house; at some point, however, Jacob
caused another house to be built on the northern-most part
of his land, which house was used as rental property. This
second house, now 11 Andover Street, was erected sometime
between 1783 and 7 Dec 1809, when Jacob mortgaged it, its
land, and the other buildings thereon, for $1150 to brother
Elijah, who discharged the mortgage 2 Sept 1811 (189:55).

Ordinarily, the date of the construction can be determined
by inspecting the real estate valuation records of the time;

however, in this case the tenant paid the taxes on the
property, and his/her name is unknown. Deacon Jacob never
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paid taxes on anything other than his Federal 3treet
residence.

Jacob Sanderson died 11 or 12 Feb 1810, aged 52 years;
to his wife Catharine (Harrington) and three children
Nathaniel Harrington, Catharine, and Jacob Jr descended
an estate worth $5033 in real property (mansion house

in Federal Street, store & land in Federal Street, a pew
in Dr Barnard's meeting-house, and the "dwelling house
and land on Lynn and Andover Street" worth $1600) and
$23, 6Li5 in personal property; despite these assets,

his estate was hopelessly (and somewhat scandclously)

insolvent (#24,568).

To Jacob's widow Catharine was set off, as her dower
third of the estate, the house and land at the corner
of Andover and Lynn Streets; as always, the dower was
set off for her lifetime, with reversion to her heirs
upon her death (#24568). ~

Then widow Catharine did something odd: on 17 Aug 1811

for $315 she sold to Josiah Caldwell, Salem cabinet-maker,
the reversion expectant upon her death in her dower sstate--
even though she had no right to sell this reversion, which
belonged to her children, and not to her (193:286). Two
days later she sold the Federal Street house and land

for $14135 to Rev. Brown Zmerson, in her capacity as the
administratrix of her late husband's estate; this sale

was perfectly legal (191:238). But then on 26 Aug 1811
for $500 more she sold to Mr Caldwell "all her estate &
interest" in her dower estate, in which she had only a
lifetime interest (193:287); Mr Caldwell immediately
granted the premises back to widow Catharine for $800-~
even though in actual fact she had no right to sell it

in the first place (193:287). On that same day, 26 Aug
1811, widow Sanderson mortgaged the premises for $250 to
John Jenks, Salem merchant (193:287); Mr Jenks assigned
this mortgage 26 Oct 1812 to Ruth, wife of Col. John Page
of Salem, and she discharged the mortgage on 26 Nov 1819
(199:52). :

Having done all this (probably to protect herself from
her husband's creditors), widow Catharine Sanderson died
on 2ly Dec 1811, aged 56 years. At her death, she owned
$2U5.52 worth of personal belongings, with which she
furnished her house at 11 Andover Street; these goods
and the house itself descended to her surviving heirs,
Nathaniel Harrington Sanderson, her sailor son aged

2ly years, and Catharine Sanderson, her 17-year-old
daughter (#2,566).
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The two heirs shared the dwelling house; Catharine married
Henry Carwick of Salem on 17 Jan 1819 when she was 2li; the
couple probably moved in to her half of the house. Brother
Nathaniel H Sanderson died suddenly on 31 May 1825, an
unmarried mariner of about 38 years, leaving to his only
heir, sister Catharine, his half of the house and land

on the corner of Andover & Lynn Sts, then appraised as
being worth $500 for the half. Catharine, by now a

widow, requested that administration on her brother's
estate be granted to her fiance Benjamin Pitman, who was,
it seems, a cousin of her late husband Henry Carwick
(#2,,570). Now the owner of the whole estate at 11 Andover
Street, Catharine married Mr ritman on 26 July 1825.

Benjamin Pitman (1792-1876) was at first a clerk in a
Salem insurance office, and later served as clerk and
book-keeper at Salem's Asiatic Bank. He was a Mason, and
his portrait is owned by the Essex Institute. On 1 Sept
1876 Mrs Catharine (Sanderson) Pitman died in her 84th
year; two months later, 8 Nov 1876, she was followed by
her second husband of 51 years, Mr Benjamin Pitman.

The Pitmans apparently had one child, Catherine E, who
inherited the house on the death of her parents; she

lived here until her death on 1L Jan 1904, at which time
the estate, valued at $1,,00, went, in accordance with her
will, to Miss Pitman's relative Fredrika L Pitman (#93651).
Fredrika L Pitman sold it on 21 Oct 1904 to Arthur K
Shepard of Salem (1758:371); twelve years later, 26 June
1916, Mr Shepard granted the premises to his wife, Ethelwyn
M Shepard (2333:499). On 26 Mar 1929 Mrs Shepard bought a
%ore of land to the east of the house from Asa N Sargent
(2800:313 & plan).

Together, the Shepards owned the homestead .for more than
60 years; lMrs Shepard died 9 Sept 196l and Mr Shepard died
10 Feb 1968 (#297L75,#295768). On 16 Oct 1968 Mrs Shepard's
administrator sold the premises for $8000 to Donald Koleman
(5569:35); on 11 Ap 1973 he granted it to the 1777 Realty
Trust (5964:12l4); on 10 Sept 1975 for $39,300 1777 Realty
Trust granted the homestead to Christine B Sullivan, the
present owner (6179:269).

Robert Booﬁh
18 April i977

Notes: A figure like (12:3)) refers to deed book 12,
leaf 3li, at the So. Essex County Registry of Deeds;

a figure like (#123l) refers to Probate Case #1234
at So. Essex County Registry of Probate; hoth on
Federal St in .Salem.
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Deacon Jacob Sanderson was born in Watertown in 41757, the
son of Jonathan and Mary Sanderson. He and his older brother
Elijsh (b. 1751) moved to Salem during the Revolutipn, and
soonn set up a successful buginess here.

The Following excerpts come from "Elijah & Jscob Sanderson,
Early Salem Cabinet-Makers," by Mabel M Swan (Essex Institute
Historical Collections, vol. 70, pps 323-6l).

"Elijah and Jacob Sanderson were Salem's most prominent
cabinet makers. In 1779, in partnership with Josiah Austin,
they instituted a co-operative business venture in which
cabinet-makers, carvers, gilders, turners, upholsterers,

and many other craftsmen contributed their respective parts
in making furniture for exportation to the southern states,
the East and West Indies, the Madeiras, South America and
Africa--wherever a cargo could be disposed of to best
advantaged(p. 324)

"Jacob Sanderson seems to have been the ruling spirit in
the firm of the E & J Sanderson Co., although he was
younger than Elijah. After his death, in 1810, when new
members were admitted to the firm, troubles multiplied
fast, and after a series of lawsuits which dragged out
over a period of years, the new company came to a most
undignified end." (p. 360)

Deacon Jacob Sanderson (1757-1810) married, in April 1781
in Salem, Catherine Harrington (1755-1811) of wWatertown. .
Knoen children:

10 Jacob, 178lL, drowned 26 June 1795, in his 11 th year.
) Nathaniel Harrington, bp July 1787, mariner, died
‘ unmarried 31 May 1825.
) Catharine, bp 5 Ap 1789, d. young.
) Susannsh, bp Jan 1792, d. young.
) Catharine, bp Nov 1794, m (1) 17 Jan 1819 Henry
Carwick; m (2) 26 July 1825 Benjamin
Pitman; d. 1 Sept 1876, aged abt 82 y.
6) Jacob, 1799, lost overboard at sea, aged 20 years,
in the summer of 1819.

vifw

Robert Booth
18 Ap 1977
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